
CITY OF ST. PAUL PARK 
 

ST. PAUL PARK, MINNESOTA 55071 
 
 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING—May 19, 2025 
 
AGENDA: 
 
 6:30 p.m. OPEN MEETING—PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
Item 1 6:30 p.m. MINUTES: 

A.  Approval of the minutes of the May 5, 2025 Regular Council 
Meeting—waive reading of same.   

Item 2 6:30 p.m. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC: 
 
Item 3 6:35 p.m. SWEARING IN POLICE OFFICERS: 
 
Item 4 6:35 p.m. CONSENT AGENDA:      

A.  Approve payment of bills for the period May 7 through May 
20, 2025.  

 
B.  Approve special event permits: 

• American Legion Riders Ace’s and 8’s Poker Run on 
June 7, 2025 

• Higher Ground Wrestling at Broadway Bar & Grill on 
June 7, 2025 

• St. Paul Park Food Truck Food Fight on June 8, 2025 

Item 5 6:40 p.m. NEW BUSINESS: 
A. 2025 Street Improvement Project 

• Resolution No. 1743, approving the local road 
improvement program grant agreement terms and 
conditions 

• Grant Agreement 
• Resolution No. 1744, accepting bid for 2025 3rd Street 

Reconstruction Project 
 
Item 6 6:45 p.m. REPORTS: 

A.  Council Member Swenson 
• Public Works Commission 

B.  Council Member Haggerty 
• Public Safety Commission 



C.  Council Member Conrad 
• Planning Commission  

D.  Council Member Whitbred-Hemmingson 
• Parks & Recreation Commission 

 
E.  Mayor Franke 

• Administration  

Item 7  6:55 p.m. COUNCIL COMMENTS AND REQUESTS: 

Adjourn 



PROPOSED MINUTES 
 
CITY OF ST. PAUL PARK 
COUNCIL MEETING 
DATE: May 5, 2025 
 
 
Meeting called to order at 6:30 pm. Present: Mayor Franke, Council Members Conrad, Haggerty, 
and Whitbred-Hemmingson. Also present: City Administrator Walsh. 
 
Absent: Council Member Swenson 
 
The pledge of allegiance was said by all. 
      
MINUTES: 

A. Approval of the minutes of the April 21, 2025 Regular Council Meeting—waive 
reading of the same 

 
Motion by Haggerty, second by Whitbred-Hemmingson to approve the minutes of 
the April 21, 2025 regular Council meeting and waive reading of the same. Motion 
carried 4-0. 
 

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC: 
There were no items from the public. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Acknowledge receipt of Commission Minutes: 
• Parks & Recreation Commission—April 10, 2025 
 

B. Approve payment of bills for the period April 23 through May 6, 2025 
 
C. Adopt Resolution No. 1742A and Resolution No. 1742B, resolutions amending 

designating depositories for 2025 
 
D. Accept police chief resignation effective May 31, 2025 

 
E. Approve proposal from ABDO Financial Solutions for a Public Works Position 

Classification and Compensation Study 
 

Motion by Haggerty, second by Whitbred-Hemmingson to approve the consent 
agenda as presented.  

 
Council Member Conrad asked for an explanation of Item E from the Consent Agenda, saying 
that he did not know anything about it other than seeing it on the agenda. City Administrator 
Walsh pointed out that the proposal was in the council’s packet. He then read from the proposal, 
which explained that the study will review current position descriptions, analyze positions, 
evaluate positions according to 2025 market wage data, evaluate positions for internal 
consistency, and address future hiring needs. The study will include recommendations and 
procedures for incorporating new reorganized positions into the compensation system in the 
future. Walsh also explained that the public works supervisor wanted to look at getting a different 
tiered system in the union contract. This study was included in the budget for this year, and this is 



a good time to do it. The contract is currently open and expires at the end of the year. There will 
be a new public works union contract approved for 2026. 
 
Council Member Conrad noted that when Tony Brinkman was promoted to the supervisor 
position, there was an opening that needed to be filled and asked how that would fit in. Mayor 
Franke explained that it will be decided when the study is completed. He further noted that this 
study could only be done during open contract times. He stated that getting the best possible 
information would help with negotiations and with reorganizing the city in the best possible way 
to move forward.  
 
Council Member Haggerty noted that the first two pages of the proposal that were in the council 
packet were the best pages to read to get the information regarding what the proposal was all 
about. The job analysis questionnaire also helped him to understand what they will be looking 
for. The proposal and job analysis questionnaire were included in the council packet.  
 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 

A. Car Show Special Event Permit Application 
 

Motion by Franke, second by Haggerty to pull the Car Show Special Event Permit 
Application from the table. Motion carried 4-0. 

 
This item was tabled at the April 21, 2025 meeting because some things were incomplete and 
needed to be investigated further. The permit application was submitted without insurance, which 
is needed when streets are closed. The American Legion agreed to add the city as an additionally 
insured on their Certificate of Insurance and cover the event. Mayor Franke recommended a cost 
of $500 for the permit. He arrived at this amount by looking at the number of Wednesdays from 
May-October, going with $25 per day, and giving a break on a few in case of rain. A special 
event permit usually costs $25 for non-profits, but that is usually just for a one-day event. The 
Lion’s Club has offered to pay the $500 fee. 
 
Mayor Franke noted that Public Works Supervisor Brinkman had raised the issue of signage 
because the city does not have the correct signs for “No Parking,” but they will use the ones the 
city has this year. The city does have a couple of the correct signs needed to close the street.  
 

Motion by Franke, second by Haggerty to approve the special event permit for the 
car show starting on May 7, 2025. Motion carried 4-0. 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
A. City Administrator Search—Bart Fischer from David Drown Associates 

 
Bart Fischer of David Drown and Associates reviewed the profile and job advertisement for the 
city administrator position. It was put together after meeting with councilmembers and staff in 
regards to the desired attributes for the next city administrator. It also included a summary of the 
community. The goal was to get this approved at the meeting and then posted in the next day or 
two to start recruiting applicants. Fischer also presented the job description, which was put 
together based on information gathered from council and staff as well as past city administrator 
searches he has performed.  
 



He then walked through the timeline of the search. He noted that as applications are submitted, he 
will review them to eliminate applicants that do not meet the minimum qualifications. After a 
work personality index, there is a video interview that the council will be able to see. Before June 
23, the council will be able to review all the information they have gathered on the applicants. On 
June 23, he would like to hold a meeting for the council to determine finalists to interview in 
person. He recommended choosing no more than five people to interview. Once the five are 
chosen, background checks and reference checks are performed prior to the interviews. Intellect 
profiles will also be done prior to the interviews, and all the information will be given to 
councilmembers one week before the interviews, so they can review it ahead of time. Interviews 
will take the whole day. They were scheduled for July 14. Some options, in addition to the 
council interview, would be staff interviews and community tours with a staff or community 
member. He reminded the council that once the finalists are chosen, the names and their 
information become public. 
 

Motion by Franke, second by Whitbred-Hemmingson to approve the city 
administrator profile, job description, salary range, scope of work, and the timeline 
to move forward with the search for the city administrator position. Motion carried 
4-0. 
 

REPORTS: 
A.  Council Member Swenson 

• Public Works Commission 
⇒ Excused 

 
B.  Council Member Haggerty 

• Public Safety Commission 
⇒ Two more members are still needed for the Public Safety Commission. 

 
C.  Council Member Conrad 

• Planning Commission 
⇒ Next meeting is scheduled for May 12 at 7 pm at City Hall. 

 
D.  Council Member Whitbred-Hemmingson 

• Parks & Recreation Commission 
⇒ She thanked everyone who came to the Art and Garden Party, and stated that 

Public Works went above and beyond in helping them with the event. She 
also thanked Mayor Franke and Council Member Haggerty for attending and 
helping to plant.  

⇒ The next meeting is scheduled for May 8 at 6 pm at City Hall. 
⇒ More members are still needed for the commission. 

 
E.  Mayor Franke 

• Administration 
⇒ He has been helping to work on some potential small developments. 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS AND REQUESTS: 
There were no additional comments or requests from the City Council. 

Meeting adjourned at 6:58 pm. 



 
 
______________________________ 
Amy Truhlar 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
l/councilminutes/year 



St. Paul Park Council Agenda 
Executive Summary 

City Council Agenda Item: May 19, 2025 
 

Title of Project: American Legion Riders 
Ace’s and 8’s Poker Run 
 

Date of Event: June 7, 2025 
 

Staff Member Reporting: Amy Truhlar 
 

Consent Agenda 

 
Summary: 
 
American Legion Post 98, 328 Broadway Avenue, is requesting a Special Event Permit 
for June 7, 2025 (Ace’s and 8’s Poker Run).  The event begins at 9 am and ends at 11:30 
pm. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council Options:   1. Approve special event permit. 
                               2. Deny special event permit. 
                               2. Table for further discussion.   
                             
 
l/cc/executivecouncilsummary 



St. Paul Park Council Agenda 
Executive Summary 

City Council Agenda Item: May 19, 2025 
 

Title of Project: Higher Ground Wrestling 
 

Date of Event: June 7, 2025 
 

Staff Member Reporting: Amy Truhlar 
 

Consent Agenda 

 
Summary: 
 
Higher Ground Wrestling is requesting a Special Event Permit for June 7, 2025 
(Wrestling Show at Broadway Bar & Grill, 244 Broadway Avenue).  The event begins at 
4 pm and ends at 8 pm. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council Options:   1. Approve special event permit. 
                               2. Deny special event permit. 
                               2. Table for further discussion.   
                             
 
l/cc/executivecouncilsummary 



St. Paul Park Council Agenda 
Executive Summary 

City Council Agenda Item: May 19, 2025 
 

Title of Project: St. Paul Park Food Truck 
Food Fight 
 

Date of Event: June 8, 2025 
 

Staff Member Reporting: Amy Truhlar 
 

Consent Agenda 

 
Summary: 
 
Heritage Days Committee is requesting a Special Event Permit for June 8, 2025 for a 
fundraising event (St. Paul Park Food Truck Food Fight, Broadway Ave & 4th Street).  
The event begins at 11 am and ends at 6 pm. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council Options:   1. Approve special event permit. 
                               2. Deny special event permit. 
                               2. Table for further discussion.   
                             
 
l/cc/executivecouncilsummary 



 

L:\Council\Council Packet\5-19-25 CC Meeting\Street Recon.2025-05-19 Memo KWalsh - 3rd Street Receive Bids Award Contract.docx  

7
0

1
 X

E
N

IA
 A

V
E

N
U

E
 S

  
| 

 S
U

IT
E

 3
0

0
  

| 
 M

IN
N

E
A

P
O

LI
S

, 
M

N
  

| 
 5

5
4

1
6

  
| 

 7
63

.5
4

1
.4

8
00

  
| 

 W
S

B
E

N
G

.C
O

M
 

Memorandum 
 
To: Kevin Walsh, City Administrator 
 
From: Morgan Dawley, PE, City Engineer 
 Kyle Hoff, PE, Project Manager 
 
Date: May 19, 2025 
 
Re: 2025 3rd Street Reconstruction Project 
 SAP 184-101-003 
 Receive Bids and Award Contract 
 WSB Project No. 024003-000 
 
 
Background 
On March 20, 2025, the City Council of St. Paul Park adopted a resolution approving the 2025 3rd 
Street Reconstruction Project plans/specifications and authorizing advertising for bids. The 
project was advertised beginning on March 23rd, and bids were received on May 12, 2025. It 
should be noted that the project was bid with a Base Bid and the following three alternates: 
 

• Alternate 1 – 14th Avenue Improvements 
• Alternate 2 – Bituminous Trail Installation 
• Alternate 3 – Concrete Walk Installation 

 
Five bids were received with the apparent low bid submitted by Geislinger and Sons, Inc., in the 
amount of $7,151,900.26, which includes the Base Bid and Alternate 3. A summary of the project 
bid abstract is enclosed. 
 
MnDOT has prepared a grant agreement for the construction funding of the project, with the 
balance being funded with City Municipal State Aid funds.  Any grant funds unused for 
engineering costs will be shifted to construction costs to minimize the need for Municipal State 
Aid funds to the greatest extent possible.  A copy of the grant agreement and a resolution 
authorizing signatures on the agreement is attached. 
 
Proposed Project Scope 
The project area of the proposed 2025 3rd Street Reconstruction Project includes primarily single-
family residential properties, along with two multi-family residential buildings, one industrial 
property, a U.S. Postal Service office, a few commercial properties, and the Nuevas Fronteras 
Spanish Immersion elementary school. 
 
The proposed improvements for 3rd Street include full reconstruction of the existing street and 
utilities, replacement and expansion of the sidewalk/bikeway facilities, drainage improvements 
and traffic calming measures. The project extends along 3rd Street from Broadway Avenue to 14th 
Avenue and is approximately one mile in length. 
 
Next Steps 
Upon successful contact award, the City will plan to hold a pre-construction meeting in the 
coming weeks.  
 
Recommended Actions 
 
1. Adopt a resolution authorizing signatures on a Local Road Improvement Grant Agreement with 
the Minnesota Department of Transportation for the 3rd Street Reconstruction Project; and 



Kevin Walsh, City Administrator 
May 19, 2025 
Page 2 

L:\Council\Council Packet\5-19-25 CC Meeting\Street Recon.2025-05-19 Memo KWalsh - 3rd Street Receive Bids Award Contract.docx 

 
2. Adopt a resolution accepting the bid from Geislinger and Sons, Inc. and awarding the contract 
for the 2025 3rd Street Reconstruction Project. 
 
Attachments 
Grant Agreement Resolution 
Grant Agreement 
Construction Contract Award Resolution 
Recommendation Letter 
Bid Abstract Summary 



 

C:\Users\sbuckley\DC\ACCDocs\WSB\024003-000\Project Files\Admin\Construction Admin\Bidding & Contracts\024003-000 CST LTR RECMMDTN-051225.docx 

7
0

1
 X

E
N

IA
 A

V
E

N
U

E
 S

  
| 

 S
U

IT
E

 3
0

0
  

| 
 M

IN
N

E
A

P
O

L
IS

, 
M

N
  

| 
 5

5
4

1
6

  
| 

 7
6

3
.5

4
1

.4
8

0
0

  
| 

 W
S

B
E

N
G

.C
O

M
 

May 13, 2025 
 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of St. Paul Park 
600 Portland Avenue 
St. Paul Park, MN 55071 
 
Re: 2025 3rd Street Reconstruction Project 
 SAP 184-101-003 
 City of St. Paul Park, MN 
 WSB Project No. 024003-000 
 
 
Dear Mayor and Council Members: 
 
Bids were received online for the above-referenced project on Monday, May 12, 2025, and were 
viewed and read aloud. Five bids were received. It should be noted that the project was bid with a 
Base Bid and the following three alternates: 
 

 Alternate 1 – 14th Avenue Improvements 
 Alternate 2 – Bituminous Trail Installation 
 Alternate 3 – Concrete Walk Installation 

 
Please find attached the Bid Tabulation Summary indicating Geislinger and Sons, Inc., Watkins, 
Minnesota, as the low bidder with a Base Bid amount of $6,902,810.26. Bid amounts for 
Alternates 1-3 were $160,186.42, $101,080.00, and $249,090.00, respectively. 
 
We recommend that the City Council consider these bids and award a contract for the Base Bid 
and Alternate 3 bid amounts in the amount of $7,151,900.26 to Geislinger and Sons, Inc., based 
on the results of the bids received. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 608.632.1432. Thank you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
WSB 
 
 
 
Kyle Hoff, PE 
Project Manager 
 
Attachment 
 
cc: Kevin Walsh, City of St. Paul Park 
 Anthony Brinkman, City of St. Paul Park 
 Amy Truhlar, City of St. Paul Park 

Morgan Dawley, WSB 
  
srb 
 



Bid Tabulation Summary
2025 3rd Street Reconstruction Project

SAP 184-101-003

City of St. Paul Park, MN

WSB Project No. 024003-000

Bids Received Online:  Monday, May 12, 2025, at 11:00 a.m. Local Time

DENOTES CORRECTED FIGURE

Contractor
Bid Bond 

(5%)
Add. Nos.
1-4 Rec'd.

Base Bid* Alternate 1
(14th Ave Imps)

Alternate 2
(Bituminous Trl)

Alternate 3
(Concrete Walk)

1 Geislinger and Sons, Inc. X X $6,902,810.26 $160,186.42 $101,080.00 $249,090.00

2 Meyer Contracting, Inc. X X $7,493,007.56 $128,618.78 $64,980.00 $212,990.00

3 S.M. Hentges & Sons, Inc. X X $7,616,423.30 $144,112.00 $158,840.00 $415,150.00

4 Dresel Contracting, Inc. X X $7,872,872.50 $238,576.30 $137,902.00 $135,736.00

5 R.L. Larson Excavating, Inc. X X $7,889,202.95 $154,692.80 $126,350.00 $274,360.00

* The Base Bid total includes all Base Bid items plus the two Provisional items totaling $32,500.

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct tabulation of the bids as received on May 12, 2025.

Kyle Hoff, PE, Project Manager

024003-000 CST Bid Tab Summary-051225



 

CITY OF ST. PAUL PARK 
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1743 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE LOCAL ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
GRANT AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of St. Paul Park has applied to the Commissioner of Transportation for a 
grant from the Local Road Improvement Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commissioner of Transportation has given notice that funding for this project is 
available; and 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of the grant has been determined to be $5,639,736.00; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City of St. Paul Park does hereby agree to the terms 
and conditions of the grant consistent with Minnesota Statutes, section 174.52, and will pay any 
additional amount by which the cost exceeds the estimate and will return to the Local Road 
Improvement Fund any amount appropriated for the project but not required. The proper city 
officers are authorized to execute a grant agreement and any amendments thereto with the 
Commissioner of Transportation concerning the above-referenced grant. 
 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of St. Paul Park, Minnesota this 19th day of May 
2025. 
 
 
 
 
               
       Keith Franke, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
       
Amy Truhlar, City Clerk 
  



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 1 

 

LOCAL ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (LRIP) 

GRANT AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement between the Minnesota Department of Transportation (“MnDOT”) and the 

Grantee named below is made pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 174.52 and pursuant to 
Minn. Laws 2023, Chapter 72- H.F. 669.  The provisions in that section and the Exhibits attached 
hereto and incorporated by reference constitute this Agreement and the persons signing below 
agree to fully comply with all of the requirements of this Agreement. This Agreement will be 
effective on the date State obtains all required signatures under Minnesota Statutes §16C.05, 
subdivision 2. 
 
1. Public Entity (Grantee) name, address and contact person: 
 
 City of St. Paul Park     
 600 Portland Avenue     
 St. Paul Park, MN 55017    
 _____________________________________  
Contact:  Kevin Walsh, City Administrator  
 
2. Project(s): 
 

Name of Project & 
Project Number 

(See Exhibit C for 
location) 

 
Amount of  
LRIP Funds 

 
Amount of Required 

Matching Funds  
Completion Date 

SAP 184-101-003     $5,639,736.00 $1,512,164.26 December 31, 2029 
    

 
3. Total Amount of LRIP Grant for all projects under this Agreement:  $5,639,736.00. 
 
4. The following Exhibits for each project are attached and incorporated by reference as part of 

this Agreement: 
 
   Exhibit A  Completed Sources and Uses of Funds Schedule  
   Exhibit B Project Schedule, Workforce Certificate, and Equal Pay Certificate 
   Exhibit C Bond Financed Property Certification  
   Exhibit D Grant Application 
   Exhibit E Grantee Resolution Approving Grant Agreement 
   Exhibit F General Terms and Conditions 
    
 
 
 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 2 

 
5. Additional requirements, if any: None 

 
 

 
6. Any modification of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by both parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(The remaining portion of this page was intentionally left blank.) 
 
 
 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 3 

PUBLIC ENTITY (GRANTEE) 
The Grantee certifies that the appropriate person(s) 
have executed the grant agreement on behalf of the 
Grantee as required by applicable articles, bylaws, 
resolutions, or ordinances. 
 
 
By:  Kevin Walsh 
 
Title: City Administrator 
 
Date: ________________________________  
 
 
 
 
By: Keith Franke 
 
Title: Mayor 
 
Date: ________________________________  
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Approval and Certifying Encumbrance as required by 
Minnesota Statutes § 16A.15 and 16C.05 
 
 
 
By: __________________________________  
 State Aid Programs Manager 
 (with delegated authority) 
 
Date: ________________________________  
 
 
 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 
 
 
 
By: __________________________________  
  
 
Date: ________________________________  

 
  



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 4 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS SCHEDULE 

 
 
 

SOURCES OF FUNDS  USES OF FUNDS 
     

Entity Supplying Funds Amount  Expenses Amount 
     

State Funds:   Items Paid for with LRIP  
2023 LRIP Grant 
SAAS Acct 389 

$5,639,736.00     Grant Funds:  

     Pedestrian and bicycle safety 
improvements, and sanitary 
sewer, drinking water, and storm 
water management 
infrastructure 

$5,639,736.00 

 Other:   ________________ $___________ 
________________ $___________  ________________ $___________ 
________________ $___________  ________________ $___________ 

     
Subtotal $5,639,736.00  Subtotal $5,639,736.00 

     
Public Entity Funds:   Items paid for with Non-  

Matching Funds      LRIP Grant Funds:  
Local Match $1,512,164.26  Pedestrian and bicycle safety 

improvements, and sanitary 
sewer, drinking water, and storm 
water management 
infrastructure 

$1,512,164.26 

     
Other:     

________________ $___________    
________________ $___________    

     
Subtotal $1,512,164.26  Subtotal $1,512,164.26 
     
     
     
     
TOTAL FUNDS $7,151,900.26 = TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $7,151,900.26 

     
 

  



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 5 

EXHIBIT B 

PROJECT SCHEDULE, WORKFORCE CERTIFICATE, AND EQUAL PAY CERTIFICATE 
 
 

Award Date: May 19, 2025 
Construction Start Date: June 15, 2025 

Construction Substantial Complete Date: August 31, 2026 
Contract Final Completion Date: December 31, 2029 

 
  



Workforce and Equal Pay Declarations Page Rev. /1/2023 

Workforce and Equal Pay Declaration Page 

This form is required for all businesses executing government contracts under the following: 

Select one: 
Businesses executing a contract with State or Metropolitan agencies in excess of $100,000 (Workforce
Certificate) and, if applicable, $500,000 (Equal Pay Certificate)

Businesses executing a contract with University of Minnesota for general obligation bond funded capital
projects in excess of $100,000 (Workforce Certificate) and, if applicable, $500,000 (Equal Pay Certificate)

Businesses executing a contract with Political Subdivisions for general obligation bond funded capital
projects in excess of $250,000 (Workforce Certificate) and, if applicable, $1,000,000 (Equal Pay Certificate)

Select all that apply: 
We are a certificate holder: 

Workforce Certificate under the name: _________________________________________________________
Equal Pay Certificate under the name: __________________________________________________________

We are applying/have applied for the following certificate(s): 
Workforce Certificate Application date (MM/DD/YYYY): ____________________
Equal Pay Certificate Application date (MM/DD/YYYY): ____________________

We have not applied for one or both certificates: 
Our company does not yet have a Workforce Certificate or Equal Pay Certificate. We acknowledge that a
Workforce Certificate and, if applicable, Equal Pay Certificate, or approved exemption by the Minnesota
Department of Human Rights is required before a contract can be executed.

We are Exempt: 
We attest to the Minnesota Department of Human Rights that we have not employed 40 or more employees
on a single day during the prior 12 months in Minnesota or the state in wh  we have our primary place of
business. The Minnesota Department of Human Rights may request the names of our employees during the
previous 12 months, the date of separation, if applicable, and the current employment status and count.
We believe our company is exempt because ___________________________________________________.
The Minnesota Department of Human Rights will review and determine if your company is exempt.

Business Information 

Vendor/Supplier ID Vendor Email 

Business Name Name of Contracting Agency 

Authorized Signatory Name Title Date 

Signature Email Phone 

For assistance with this form, email the Minnesota Department of Human Rights Compliance.MDHR@state.mn.us 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 8 

EXHIBIT C 

BOND FINANCED PROPERTY CERTIFICATION 
 

State of Minnesota 
General Obligation Bond Financed Property 

 
 
 The undersigned states that it has a fee simple, leasehold and/or easement interest in the real 
property located in the County of Washington, State of Minnesota that is generally described or 
illustrated graphically in Attachment 1 attached hereto and all improvements thereon (the “Restricted 
Property”) and acknowledges that the Restricted Property is or may become State bond-financed 
property.  To the extent that the Restricted Property is or becomes State bond-financed property, the 
undersigned acknowledges that: 
 

A. The Restricted Property is State bond-financed property under Minn. Stat. Sec. 
16A.695, is subject to the requirements imposed by that statute, and cannot be 
sold, mortgaged, encumbered or otherwise disposed of without the approval of the 
Commissioner of Minnesota Management and Budget; and 

 
B. The Restricted Property is subject to the provisions of the Local Road 

Improvement Program Grant Agreement between the Minnesota Department of 
Transportation and the undersigned dated ________________, 20___; and 
 

C. The Restricted Property shall continue to be deemed State bond-financed property 
for 37.5 years or until the Restricted Property is sold with the written approval of 
the Commissioner of Minnesota Management and Budget.  

 
Date:  __________________, 20____ 
 

_____________________________________  
City of St. Paul Park , a political subdivision of  
the State of Minnesota   
 
By:  ________________________________ 
Name: Kevin Walsh 
Title:  City Administrator 
 
 
By:  Keith Franke 
Name: Mayor 
Title:  _______________________________ 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 9 

 
Attachment 1 to Exhibit C 

 
GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF RESTRICTED PROPERTY 

 
 
In the State of Minnesota, Washington County, the project shall be located within City of St. Paul 
Park dedicated rights of way for 3rd Street from 14th Avenue to Broadway Avenue. 
  



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 10 

EXHIBIT D 

GRANT APPLICATION 
 

Attach the grant application for the project  
 
 
 

 
In 2023 laws, Chapter 72, Article 1, Section 16, Subdivision 17, the legislature appropriated 
$7,000,000.00 to “to predesign, design, engineer, construct, and equip the Third Street Collector 
Roadway Improvements Project. This appropriation includes money for the construction and 
reconstruction of Third Street from Broadway Avenue to 14th Avenue, pedestrian and bicycle 
safety improvements, and sanitary sewer, drinking water, and storm water management 
infrastructure.”  
This portion of the project will be funded from that appropriation, with $5,639,736.00 in LRIP 
funding. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 11 

 

EXHIBIT E 

GRANTEE RESOLUTION APPROVING GRANT AGREEMENT 
 
 
 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 12 

RESOLUTION 
Local Road Improvement Program Grant Agreement 

Grant Terms and Conditions 
SAP 184-101-003 

Date 
 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of St. Paul Park has applied to the Commissioner of Transportation for a 
grant from the Local Road Improvement Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commissioner of Transportation has given notice that funding for this project is 
available; and 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of the grant has been determined to be $5,639,736.00  by reason of the 
lowest responsible bid; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City of St. Paul Park does hereby agree to the terms 
and conditions of the grant consistent with Minnesota Statutes, section 174.52, and will pay any 
additional amount by which the cost exceeds the estimate and will return to the Local Road 
Improvement Fund any amount appropriated for the project but not required. The proper City 
officers are authorized to execute a grant agreement and any amendments thereto with the 
Commissioner of Transportation concerning the above-referenced grant. 
 

 

Signatures 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 13 

 

EXHIBIT F 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR 
LOCAL ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (LRIP) GRANTS 

 
Article I 

DEFINITIONS 
 
 Section 1.01 Defined Terms.  The following terms shall have the meanings set out respectively after 
each such term (the meanings to be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of the terms 
defined) unless the context specifically indicates otherwise: 
 
 “Advance(s)” -  means an advance made or to be made by MnDOT to the Public Entity and disbursed 
in accordance with the provisions contained in Article VI hereof. 
 
 “Agreement” - means the Local Road Improvement Program Grant Agreement between the Public 
Entity and the Minnesota Department of Transportation to which this Exhibit is attached. 

 
“Certification” - means the certification, in the form attached as Exhibit C, in which the Public Entity 

acknowledges that its interest in the Real Property is bond financed property within the meaning of Minn. 
Stat. Sec. 16A.695 and is subject to certain restrictions imposed thereby. 

 
“Code” - means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and all treasury regulations, revenue 

procedures and revenue rulings issued pursuant thereto. 
 
“Commissioner” - means the Commissioner of Minnesota Management & Budget. 
 
“Commissioner’s Order” - means the “Fourth Order Amending Order of the Commissioner of 

Minnesota Management & Budget Relating to Use and Sale of State Bond Financed Property” dated July 
30, 2012, as it may be amended or supplemented. 

 
“Completion Date” - means the projected date for completion of the Project as indicated in the 

Agreement. 
 
“Construction Contract Documents” - means the document or documents, in form and substance 

acceptable to MnDOT, including but not limited to any construction plans and specifications and any 
exhibits, amendments, change orders, modifications thereof or supplements thereto, which collectively 
form the contract between the Public Entity and the Contractor(s) for the completion of the Construction 
Items on or before the Completion Date for either a fixed price or a guaranteed maximum price. 

 
“Construction Items” - means the work to be performed under the Construction Contract Documents. 
 
“Contractor” - means any person engaged to work on or to furnish materials and supplies for the 

Construction Items including, if applicable, a general contractor. 
 
“Draw Requisition” - means a draw requisition that the Public Entity, or its designee, submits to 

MnDOT when an Advance is requested, as referred to in Section 4.02. 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 14 

 
“G.O. Bonds” - means the state general obligation bonds issued under the authority granted in Article 

XI, Sec. 5(a) of the Minnesota Constitution, the proceeds of which are used to fund the LRIP Grant, and 
any bonds issued to refund or replace such bonds. 

 
“Grant Application” - means the grant application that the Public Entity submitted to MnDOT which 

is attached as Exhibit D. 
 
“LRIP Grant” - means a grant from MnDOT to the Public Entity under the LRIP in the amount 

specified in the Agreement, as such amount may be modified under the provisions hereof. 
 
“LRIP” - means the Local Road Improvement Program pursuant to Minn. Stat. Sec. 174.52 and rules 

relating thereto. 
 
“MnDOT” - means the Minnesota Department of Transportation. 
 
“Outstanding Balance of the LRIP Grant” - means the portion of the LRIP Grant that has been 

disbursed to the Public Entity minus any amounts returned to the Commissioner. 
 
“Project” - means the Project identified in the Agreement to be totally or partially funded with a LRIP 

grant. 
 
“Public Entity” - means the grantee of the LRIP Grant and identified as the Public Entity in the 

Agreement. 
 
“Real Property” - means the real property identified in the Agreement on which the Project is located. 

 
Article II 
GRANT 

 
 Section 2.01 Grant of Monies.  MnDOT shall make the LRIP Grant to the Public Entity, and disburse 
the proceeds in accordance with the terms and conditions herein.   

 
 Section 2.02 Public Ownership, The Public Entity acknowledges and agrees that the LRIP Grant is 
being funded with the proceeds of G.O. Bonds, and as a result all of the Real Property must be owned by 
one or more public entities.  The Public Entity represents and warrants to MnDOT that it has one or more 
of the following ownership interests in the Real Property:  (i) fee simple ownership, (ii) an easement that is 
for a term that extends beyond the date that is 37.5 years from the Agreement effective date, or such shorter 
term as authorized by statute, and which cannot be modified or terminated early without the prior written 
consent of MnDOT and the Commissioner; and/or (iii) a prescriptive easement for a term that extends 
beyond the date that is 37.5 years from the Agreement effective date.   
 
 Section 2.03 Use of Grant Proceeds. The Public Entity shall use the LRIP Grant solely to reimburse 
itself for expenditures it has already made, or will make, to pay the costs of one of the following applicable 
activities: (i) preliminary, final construction and engineering and administration (ii) constructing or 
reconstructing city streets, county highways, or town roads with statewide or regional significance that 
have not been fully funded through other state, federal, or local funding sources; or (iii) capital 
improvement projects on county state-aid highways that are intended primarily to reduce traffic crashes, 
deaths, injuries, and property damage. The Public Entity shall not use the LRIP Grant for any other purpose, 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 15 

including but not limited to, any work to be done on a state trunk highway or within a trunk highway 
easement.   
 

Section 2.04 Operation of the Real Property.  The Real Property must be used by the Public Entity 
in conjunction with or for the operation of a county highway, county state-aid highway, town road, or city 
street and for other uses customarily associated therewith, such as trails and utility corridors, and for no 
other purposes or uses.  The Public Entity shall have no intention on the effective date of the Agreement to 
use the Real Property as a trunk highway or any part of a trunk highway.  The Public Entity must annually 
determine that the Real Property is being used for the purposes specified in this Section and, upon written 
request by either MnDOT or the Commissioner, shall supply a notarized statement to that effect. 

 
 Section 2.05 Sale or Lease of Real Property.  The Public Entity shall not (i) sell or transfer any part 
of its ownership interest in the Real Property, or (ii) lease out or enter into any contract that would allow 
another entity to use or operate the Real Property without the written consent of both MnDOT and the 
Commissioner.  The sale or transfer of any part of the Public Entity’s ownership interest in the Real 
Property, or any lease or contract that would allow another entity to use or operate the Real Property, must 
comply with the requirements imposed by Minn. Stat. Sec. 16A.695 and the Commissioner’s Order 
regarding such sale or lease. 
 
 Section 2.06 Public Entity’s Representations and Warranties.  The Public Entity represents and 
warrants to MnDOT that: 

 
A. It has legal authority to execute, deliver and perform the Agreement and all documents referred 

to therein, and it has taken all actions necessary to its execution and delivery of such documents. 
 
B. It has the ability and a plan to fund the operation of the Real Property for the purposes specified 

in Section 2.04, and will include in its annual budget all funds necessary for the operation of 
the Real Property for such purposes. 

 
C.  The Agreement and all other documents referred to therein are the legal, valid and binding 

obligations of the Public Entity enforceable against the Public Entity in accordance with their 
respective terms. 

 
D. It will comply with all of the provisions of Minn. Stat. Sec. 16A.695, the Commissioner’s Order 

and the LRIP.  It has legal authority to use the G.O. Grant for the purpose or purposes described 
in this Agreement. 

 
E. All of the information it has submitted or will submit to MnDOT or the Commissioner relating 

to the LRIP Grant or the disbursement of the LRIP Grant is and will be true and correct. 
 
F. It is not in violation of any provisions of its charter or of the laws of the State of Minnesota, 

and there are no actions or proceedings pending, or to its knowledge threatened, before any 
judicial body or governmental authority against or affecting it relating to the Real Property, or 
its ownership interest therein, and it is not in default with respect to any order, writ, injunction, 
decree, or demand of any court or any governmental authority which would impair its ability 
to enter into the Agreement or any document referred to herein, or to perform any of the acts 
required of it in such documents. 

 
G. Neither the execution and delivery of the Agreement or any document referred to herein nor 

compliance with any of the provisions or requirements of any of such documents is prevented 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 16 

by, is a breach of, or will result in a breach of, any provision of any agreement or document to 
which it is now a party or by which it is bound. 

 
H. The contemplated use of the Real Property will not violate any applicable zoning or use statute, 

ordinance, building code, rule or regulation, or any covenant or agreement of record relating 
thereto. 

 
I. The Project will be completed and the Real Property will be operated in full compliance with 

all applicable laws, rules, ordinances, and regulations of any federal, state, or local political 
subdivision having jurisdiction over the Project and the Real Property. 

 
J. All applicable licenses, permits and bonds required for the performance and completion of the 

Project and for the operation of the Real Property as specified in Section 2.04 have been, or 
will be, obtained. 

 
K. It reasonably expects to possess its ownership interest in the Real Property described in Section 

2.02 for at least 37.5 years, and it does not expect to sell such ownership interest. 
 
L. It does not expect to lease out or enter into any contract that would allow another entity to use 

or operate the Real Property. 
 
M. It will supply whatever funds are needed in addition to the LRIP Grant to complete and fully 

pay for the Project. 
 
N. The Construction Items will be completed substantially in accordance with the Construction 

Contract Documents by the Completion Date and all such items will be situated entirely on the 
Real Property. 

 
O. It will require the Contractor or Contractors to comply with all rules, regulations, ordinances, 

and laws bearing on its performance under the Construction Contract Documents. 
 
P. It shall furnish such satisfactory evidence regarding the representations and warranties 

described herein as may be required and requested by either MnDOT or the Commissioner. 
 
Q.     It has made no material false statement or misstatement of fact in connection with its receipt of 

the G.O. Grant, and all the information it has submitted or will submit to the State Entity or 
Commissioner of MMB relating to the G.O. Grant or the disbursement of any of the G.O. Grant 
is and will be true and correct. 

 
Section 2.07 Event(s) of Default.  The following events shall, unless waived in writing by MnDOT 

and the Commissioner, constitute an Event of Default under the Agreement upon either MnDOT or the 
Commissioner giving the Public Entity 30 days’ written notice of such event and the Public Entity’s failure 
to cure such event during such 30-day time period for those Events of Default that can be cured within 30 
days or within whatever time period is needed to cure those Events of Default that cannot be cured within 
30 days as long as the Public Entity is using its best efforts to cure and is making reasonable progress in 
curing such Events of Default; however, in no event shall the time period to cure any Event of Default 
exceed six (6) months unless otherwise consented to, in writing, by MnDOT and the Commissioner. 

 
A. If any representation, covenant, or warranty made by the Public Entity herein or in any other 

document furnished pursuant to the Agreement, or to induce MnDOT to disburse the LRIP 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 17 

Grant, shall prove to have been untrue or incorrect in any material respect or materially 
misleading as of the time such representation, covenant, or warranty was made. 

 
B. If the Public Entity fails to fully comply with any provision, covenant, or warranty contained 

herein. 
 
C. If the Public Entity fails to fully comply with any provision, covenant or warranty contained 

in Minn. Stat. Sec. 16A.695, the Commissioner’s Order, or Minn. Stat. Sec. 174.52 and all 
rules related thereto. 

 
D. If the Public Entity fails to use the proceeds of the LRIP Grant for the purposes set forth in 

Section 2.03, the Grant Application, and in accordance with the LRIP. 
 
E. If the Public Entity fails to operate the Real Property for the purposes specified in Section 2.04. 
 
F. If the Public Entity fails to complete the Project by the Completion Date. 
 
G. If the Public Entity sells or transfers any portion of its ownership interest in the Real Property 

without first obtaining the written consent of both MnDOT and the Commissioner. 
 
H. If the Public Entity fails to provide any additional funds needed to fully pay for the Project. 
 
I. If the Public Entity fails to supply the funds needed to operate the Real Property in the manner 

specified in Section 2.04. 
 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, any of the above events that cannot be cured shall, unless waived in writing 
by MnDOT and the Commissioner, constitute an Event of Default under the Agreement immediately upon 
either MnDOT or the Commissioner giving the Public Entity written notice of such event. 

 
Section 2.08 Remedies.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default and at any time thereafter until 

such Event of Default is cured to the satisfaction of MnDOT, MnDOT or the Commissioner may enforce 
any or all of the following remedies. 

 
A. MnDOT may refrain from disbursing the LRIP Grant; provided, however, MnDOT may make 

such disbursements after the occurrence of an Event of Default without waiving its rights and 
remedies hereunder. 

 
B. If the Event of Default involves a sale of the Public Entity’s interest in the Real Property in 

violation of Minn. Stat. Sec. 16A.695 or the Commissioner’s Order, the Commissioner, as a 
third party beneficiary of the Agreement, may require that the Public Entity pay the amounts 
that would have been paid if there had been compliance with such provisions.  For other Events 
of Default, the Commissioner may require that the Outstanding Balance of the LRIP Grant be 
returned to it. 

 
C. Either MnDOT or the Commissioner, as a third party beneficiary of the Agreement, may 

enforce any additional remedies it may have in law or equity. 
 
The rights and remedies specified herein are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies that 
MnDOT or the Commissioner would otherwise possess. 
 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 18 

If the Public Entity does not repay the amounts required to be paid under this Section or under any other 
provision contained herein within 30 days of demand by the Commissioner, or any amount ordered by a 
court of competent jurisdiction within 30 days of entry of judgment against the Public Entity and in favor 
of MnDOT and/or the Commissioner, then such amount may, unless precluded by law, be offset against 
any aids or other monies that the Public Entity is entitled to receive from the State of Minnesota. 
 

Section 2.09 Notification of Event of Default.  The Public Entity shall furnish to MnDOT and the 
Commissioner, as soon as possible and in any event within seven (7) days after it has obtained knowledge 
of the occurrence of each Event of Default, a statement setting forth details of each Event of Default and 
the action which the Public Entity proposes to take with respect thereto. 
 

Section 2.10 Effect of Event of Default.  The Agreement shall survive Events of Default and remain 
in full force and effect, even upon full disbursement of the LRIP Grant, and shall only be terminated under 
the circumstances set forth in Section 2.11. 
 

Section 2.11 Termination of Agreement and Modification of LRIP Grant.   
 
A. If the Project is not started within five (5) years after the effective date of the Agreement or the 

LRIP Grant has not been disbursed within four (4) years after the date the Project was started, MnDOT’ s 
obligation to fund the LRIP Grant shall terminate.  In such event, (i) if none of the LRIP Grant has been 
disbursed by such date, MnDOT shall have no obligation to fund the LRIP Grant and the Agreement will 
terminate, and (ii) if some but not all of the LRIP Grant has been disbursed by such date, MnDOT shall 
have no further obligation to provide any additional funding for the LRIP Grant and the Agreement shall 
remain in force but shall be modified to reflect the amount of the LRIP Grant that was actually disbursed 
and the Public Entity is still obligated to complete the Project by the Completion Date. 

 
B.  The Agreement shall terminate upon the Public Entity’s sale of its interest in the Real Property 

and transmittal of the required portion of the proceeds of the sale to the Commissioner in compliance with 
Minn. Stat. Sec. 16A.695 and the Commissioner’s Order, or upon the termination of the Public Entity’s 
ownership interest in the Real Property if such ownership interest is an easement. 

 
Section 2.12 Excess Funds.  If the full amount of the G.O. Grant and any matching funds referred to 

in Section 5.13 are not needed to complete the Project, then, unless language in the G.O. Bonding 
Legislation indicates otherwise, the G.O. Grant shall be reduced by the amount not needed.   
 

Article III 
 

COMPLIANCE WITH MINNESOTA STATUTE, SEC. 16A.695 
AND THE COMMISSIONER’S ORDER 

 
Section 3.01 State Bond Financed Property.  The Public Entity acknowledges that its interest in 

the Real Property is, or when acquired by it will be, “state bond financed property”, as such term is used in 
Minn. Stat. Sec. 16A.695 and the Commissioner’s Order and, therefore, the provisions contained in such 
statute and order apply, or will apply, to its interest in the Real Property, even if the LRIP Grant will only 
pay for a portion of the Project. 
 

Section 3.02 Preservation of Tax Exempt Status.  In order to preserve the tax-exempt status of the 
G.O. Bonds, the Public Entity agrees as follows: 

 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 19 

A. It will not use the Real Property or use or invest the LRIP Grant or any other sums treated as 
“bond proceeds” under Section 148 of the Code (including “investment proceeds,” “invested 
sinking funds” and “replacement proceeds”) in such a manner as to cause the G.O. Bonds to be 
classified as “arbitrage bonds” under Code Section 148. 

 
B. It will deposit and hold the LRIP Grant in a segregated non-interest-bearing account until such 

funds are used for payments for the Project. 
 
C. It will, upon written request, provide the Commissioner all information required to satisfy the 

informational requirements set forth in the Code, including Sections 103 and 148, with respect 
to the G.O. Bonds. 

 
D. It will, upon the occurrence of any act or omission by the Public Entity that could cause the 

interest on the G.O. Bonds to no longer be tax exempt and upon direction from the 
Commissioner, take such actions and furnish such documents as the Commissioner determines 
to be necessary to ensure that the interest to be paid on the G.O. Bonds is exempt from federal 
taxation, which such action may include: (i) compliance with proceedings intended to classify 
the G.O. Bonds as a “qualified bond” within the meaning of Code Section 141(e), or (ii) 
changing the nature of the use of the Real Property so that none of the net proceeds of the G.O. 
Bonds will be deemed to be used, directly or indirectly, in an “unrelated trade or business” or 
for any “private business use” within the meaning of Code Sections 141(b) and 145(a). 

 
E. It will not otherwise use any of the LRIP Grant or take, permit or cause to be taken, or omit to 

take, any action that would adversely affect the exemption from federal income taxation of the 
interest on the G.O. Bonds, and if it should take, permit or cause to be taken, or omit to take, 
as appropriate, any such action, it shall take all lawful actions necessary to correct such actions 
or omissions promptly upon obtaining knowledge thereof. 

 
Section 3.03 Changes to G.O. Compliance Legislation or the Commissioner’s Order.  If Minn. 

Stat. Sec. 16A.695 or the Commissioner’s Order is amended in a manner that reduces any requirement 
imposed against the Public Entity, or if the Public Entity’s interest in the Real Property becomes exempted 
from Minn. Stat. Sec. 16A.695 and the Commissioner’s Order, then upon written request by the Public 
Entity, MnDOT shall execute an amendment to the Agreement to implement such amendment or exempt 
the Public Entity’s interest in the Real Property from Minn. Stat. Sec. 16A.695 and the Commissioner’s 
Order. 

 
Article IV 

DISBURSEMENT OF GRANT PROCEEDS 
 

Section 4.01 The Advances.  MnDOT agrees, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth 
herein, to make Advances of the LRIP Grant to the Public Entity from time to time in an aggregate total 
amount not to exceed the amount of the LRIP Grant.  If the amount of LRIP Grant that MnDOT 
cumulatively disburses hereunder to the Public Entity is less than the amount of the LRIP Grant delineated 
in Section 1.01, then MnDOT and the Public Entity shall enter into and execute whatever documents 
MnDOT may request in order to amend or modify this Agreement to reduce the amount of the LRIP Grant 
to the amount actually disbursed.  Provided, however, in accordance with the provisions contained in 
Section 2.11, MnDOT’s obligation to make Advances shall terminate as of the dates specified in Section 
2.11 even if the entire LRIP Grant has not been disbursed by such dates. 

 
Advances shall only be for expenses that (i) are for those items of a capital nature delineated in Source 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 20 

and Use of Funds that is attached as Exhibit A, (ii) accrued no earlier than the effective date of the 
legislation that appropriated the funds that are used to fund the LRIP Grant, or (iii) have otherwise been 
consented to, in writing, by the Commissioner. 

 
It is the intent of the parties hereto that the rate of disbursement of the Advances shall not exceed the rate 
of completion of the Project or the rate of disbursement of the matching funds required, if any, under Section 
5.13.  Therefore, the cumulative amount of all Advances disbursed by the State Entity at any point in time 
shall not exceed the portion of the Project that has been completed and the percentage of the matching funds 
required, if any, under Section 5.13 that have been disbursed as of such point in time.  This requirement is 
expressed by way of the following two formulas: 

 
    Formula #1: 
Cumulative Advances < (Program Grant) × (percentage of matching funds, if any, required under 

Section 5.13 that have been disbursed) 
 
    Formula #2: 
Cumulative Advances < (Program Grant) × (percentage of Project completed) 
 
Section 4.02  Draw Requisitions.  Whenever the Public Entity desires a disbursement of a portion 

of the LRIP Grant the Public Entity shall submit to MnDOT a Draw Requisition duly executed on behalf 
of the Public Entity or its designee.  Each Draw Requisition with respect to construction items shall be 
limited to amounts equal to: (i) the total value of the classes of the work by percentage of completion as 
approved by the Public Entity and MnDOT, plus (ii) the value of materials and equipment not incorporated 
in the Project but delivered and suitably stored on or off the Real Property in a manner acceptable to 
MnDOT, less (iii) any applicable retainage, and less (iv) all prior Advances. 

 
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no Advances for materials stored on or off the Real 

Property will be made by MnDOT unless the Public Entity shall advise MnDOT, in writing, of its intention 
to so store materials prior to their delivery and MnDOT has not objected thereto. 

 
At the time of submission of each Draw Requisition, other than the final Draw Requisition, the Public 

Entity shall submit to MnDOT such supporting evidence as may be requested by MnDOT to substantiate 
all payments which are to be made out of the relevant Draw Requisition or to substantiate all payments 
then made with respect to the Project. 

 
The final Draw Requisition shall not be submitted before completion of the Project, including any 

correction of material defects in workmanship or materials (other than the completion of punch list items). 
At the time of submission of the final Draw Requisition the Public Entity shall submit to MnDOT: (I) such 
supporting evidence as may be requested by MnDOT to substantiate all payments which are to be made 
out of the final Draw Requisition or to substantiate all payments then made with respect to the Project, and 
(ii) satisfactory evidence that all work requiring inspection by municipal or other governmental authorities 
having jurisdiction has been duly inspected and approved by such authorities and that all requisite 
certificates and other approvals have been issued. 

 
If on the date an Advance is desired the Public Entity has complied with all requirements of this 

Agreement and MnDOT approves the relevant Draw Requisition, then MnDOT shall disburse the amount 
of the requested Advance to the Public Entity. 

 
Section 4.03  Additional Funds.  If MnDOT shall at any time in good faith determine that the sum 

of the undisbursed amount of the LRIP Grant plus the amount of all other funds committed to the Project 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 21 

is less than the amount required to pay all costs and expenses of any kind which reasonably may be 
anticipated in connection with the Project, then MnDOT may send written notice thereof to the Public 
Entity specifying the amount which must be supplied in order to provide sufficient funds to complete the 
Project.  The Public Entity agrees that it will, within 10 calendar days of receipt of any such notice, supply 
or have some other entity supply the amount of funds specified in MnDOT's notice. 

 
Section 4.04 Condition Precedent to Any Advance.  The obligation of MnDOT to make any 

Advance hereunder (including the initial Advance) shall be subject to the following conditions precedent: 
 

A. MnDOT shall have received a Draw Requisition for such Advance specifying the amount of 
funds being requested, which such amount when added to all prior requests for an Advance 
shall not exceed the amount of the LRIP Grant set forth in Section 1.01. 

 
B. No Event of Default under this Agreement or event which would constitute an Event of Default 

but for the requirement that notice be given or that a period of grace or time elapse shall have 
occurred and be continuing.   

 
C. No determination shall have been made by MnDOT that the amount of funds committed to the 

Project is less than the amount required to pay all costs and expenses of any kind that may 
reasonably be anticipated in connection with the Project, or if such a determination has been 
made and notice thereof sent to the Public Entity under Section 4.03, then the Public Entity has 
supplied, or has caused some other entity to supply, the necessary funds in accordance with 
such section or has provided evidence acceptable to MnDOT that sufficient funds are available. 

 
D. The State Entity shall have received evidence, in form and substance acceptable to the State 

Entity, that the Public Entity has sufficient funds to fully and completely pay for the Project 
and all other expenses that may occur in conjunction therewith. 

 
E. The Public Entity has supplied to the State Entity all other items that the State Entity may 

reasonably require   
 

Section 4.05 Processing and Disbursement of Advances. The Public Entity acknowledges and 
agrees as follows: 

 
A. Advances are not made prior to completion of work performed on the Project. 
 
B. All Advances are processed on a reimbursement basis. 
 
C. The Public Entity must first document expenditures to obtain an Advance. 
 
D. Reimbursement requests are made on a partial payment basis or when the Project is completed. 
 
E.  All payments are made following the “Delegated Contract Process or State Aid Payment Request” 

as requested and approved by the appropriate district state aid engineer. 
 

Section 4.06 Construction Inspections.  The Public Entity shall be responsible for making its own 
inspections and observations regarding the completion of the Project, and shall determine to its own 
satisfaction that all work done or materials supplied have been properly done or supplied in accordance 
with all contracts that the Public Entity has entered into regarding the completion of the Project. 
 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 22 

 
Article V 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Section 5.01 Insurance.  If the Public Entity elects to maintain general comprehensive liability 
insurance regarding the Real Property, then the Public Entity shall have MnDOT named as an additional 
named insured therein. 
 

Section 5.02 Condemnation.  If, after the Public Entity has acquired the ownership interest set forth 
in Section 2.02, all or any portion of the Real Property is condemned to an extent that the Public Entity can 
no longer comply with Section 2.04, then the Public Entity shall, at its sole option, either: (i) use the 
condemnation proceeds to acquire an interest in additional real property needed for the Public Entity to 
continue to comply with Section 2.04 and to provide whatever additional funds that may be needed for such 
purposes, or (ii) submit a request to MnDOT and the Commissioner to allow it to sell the remaining portion 
of its interest in the Real Property.  Any condemnation proceeds which are not used to acquire an interest 
in additional real property shall be applied in accordance with Minn. Stat. Sec. 16A.695 and the 
Commissioner’s Order as if the Public Entity’s interest in the Real Property had been sold.  If the Public 
Entity elects to sell its interest in the portion of the Real Property that remains after the condemnation, such 
sale must occur within a reasonable time period after the date the condemnation occurred and the cumulative 
sum of the condemnation and sale proceeds applied in accordance with Minn. Stat. Sec. 16A.695 and the 
Commissioner’s Order. 
 
If MnDOT receives any condemnation proceeds referred to herein, MnDOT agrees to or pay over to the 
Public Entity all of such condemnation proceeds so that the Public Entity can comply with the requirements 
of this Section. 
 

Section 5.03 Use, Maintenance, Repair and Alterations.  The Public Entity shall not, without the 
written consent of MnDOT and the Commissioner, (i) permit or allow the use of any of the Real Property 
for any purpose other than the purposes specified in Section 2.04, (ii) substantially alter any of the Real 
Property except such alterations as may be required by laws, ordinances or regulations, or such other 
alterations as may improve the Real Property by increasing its value or which improve its ability to be used 
for the purposes set forth in Section 2.04, (iii) take any action which would unduly impair or depreciate the 
value of the Real Property, (iv) abandon the Real Property, or (v) commit or permit any act to be done in 
or on the Real Property in violation of any law, ordinance or regulation. 
 
If the Public Entity fails to maintain the Real Property in accordance with this Section, MnDOT may 
perform whatever acts and expend whatever funds necessary to so maintain the Real Property, and the 
Public Entity irrevocably authorizes MnDOT to enter upon the Real Property to perform such acts as may 
be necessary to so maintain the Real Property.  Any actions taken or funds expended by MnDOT shall be 
at its sole discretion, and nothing contained herein shall require MnDOT to take any action or incur any 
expense and MnDOT shall not be responsible, or liable to the Public Entity or any other entity, for any such 
acts that are performed in good faith and not in a negligent manner.  Any funds expended by MnDOT 
pursuant to this Section shall be due and payable on demand by MnDOT and will bear interest from the 
date of payment by MnDOT at a rate equal to the lesser of the maximum interest rate allowed by law or 
18% per year based upon a 365-day year. 
 

Section 5.04 Recordkeeping and Reporting. The Public Entity shall maintain books and records 
pertaining to Project costs and expenses needed to comply with the requirements contained herein, Minn. 
Stat. Sec. 16A.695, the Commissioner’s Order, and Minn. Stat. Sec. 174.52 and all rules related thereto, 
and upon request shall allow MnDOT, its auditors, the Legislative Auditor for the State of Minnesota, or 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 23 

the State Auditor for the State of Minnesota, to inspect, audit, copy, or abstract all of such items.  The Public 
Entity shall use generally accepted accounting principles in the maintenance of such items, and shall retain 
all of such books and records for a period of six years after the date that the Project is fully completed and 
placed into operation. 
 

Section 5.05 Inspections by MnDOT.  The Public Entity shall allow MnDOT to inspect the Real 
Property upon reasonable request by MnDOT and without interfering with the normal use of the Real 
Property.  
 

Section 5.06 Liability.  The Public Entity and MnDOT agree that each will be responsible for its own 
acts and the results thereof to the extent authorized by law, and neither shall be responsible for the acts of 
the other party and the results thereof.  The liability of MnDOT and the Commissioner is governed by the 
provisions of Minn. Stat. Sec. 3.736.  If the Public Entity is a “municipality” as that term is used in Minn. 
Stat. Chapter 466, then the liability of the Public Entity is governed by the provisions of Chapter 466.  The 
Public Entity’s liability hereunder shall not be limited to the extent of insurance carried by or provided by 
the Public Entity, or subject to any exclusion from coverage in any insurance policy. 
 

Section 5.07 Relationship of the Parties.  Nothing contained in the Agreement is to be construed as 
establishing a relationship of co-partners or joint venture among the Public Entity, MnDOT, or the 
Commissioner, nor shall the Public Entity be considered to be an agent, representative, or employee of 
MnDOT, the Commissioner, or the State of Minnesota in the performance of the Agreement or the Project. 
 
No employee of the Public Entity or other person engaging in the performance of the Agreement or the 
Project shall be deemed have any contractual relationship with MnDOT, the Commissioner, or the State of 
Minnesota and shall not be considered an employee of any of those entities.  Any claims that may arise on 
behalf of said employees or other persons out of employment or alleged employment, including claims 
under the Workers’ Compensation Act of the State of Minnesota, claims of discrimination against the Public 
Entity or its officers, agents, contractors, or employees shall in no way be the responsibility of MnDOT, 
the Commissioner, or the State of Minnesota.  Such employees or other persons shall not require nor be 
entitled to any compensation, rights or benefits of any kind whatsoever from MnDOT, the Commissioner, 
or the State of Minnesota, including tenure rights, medical and hospital care, sick and vacation leave, 
disability benefits, severance pay and retirement benefits. 
 

Section 5.08 Notices.  In addition to any notice required under applicable law to be given in another 
manner, any notices required hereunder must be in writing and personally served or sent by prepaid, 
registered, or certified mail (return receipt requested), to the address of the party specified below or to such 
different address as may in the future be specified by a party by written notice to the others: 

 
 To the Public Entity:  At the address indicated on the first page of the Agreement. 
 
 To MnDOT at: Minnesota Department of Transportation 

Office of State Aid  
395 John Ireland Blvd., MS 500 
Saint Paul, MN  55155 
Attention:  Marc Briese, State Aid Programs Engineer 

 
To the Commissioner at: Minnesota Management & Budget 

400 Centennial Office Bldg. 
658 Cedar St. 
St. Paul, MN 55155 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 24 

Attention:  Commissioner 
 

Section 5.09  Assignment or Modification.  Neither the Public Entity nor MnDOT may assign any 
of its rights or obligations under the Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.   
 

Section 5.10  Waiver.  Neither the failure by the Public Entity, MnDOT, or the Commissioner, as a 
third party beneficiary of the Agreement, in one or more instances to insist upon the complete observance 
or performance of any provision hereof, nor the failure of the Public Entity, MnDOT, or the Commissioner 
to exercise any right or remedy conferred hereunder or afforded by law shall be construed as waiving any 
breach of such provision or the right to exercise such right or remedy thereafter.  In addition, no delay by 
any of the Public Entity, MnDOT, or the Commissioner in exercising any right or remedy hereunder shall 
operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right or remedy preclude other or 
further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or remedy. 
 

Section 5.11 Choice of Law and Venue.  All matters relating to the validity, interpretation, 
performance, or enforcement of the Agreement shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Minnesota.  All legal actions arising from any provision of the Agreement shall be initiated and venued 
in the State of Minnesota District Court located in St. Paul, Minnesota. 
 

Section 5.12  Severability.  If any provision of the Agreement is finally judged by any court to be 
invalid, then the remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect and they shall be interpreted, 
performed, and enforced as if the invalid provision did not appear herein. 
 
 Section 5.13  Matching Funds.  Any matching funds as shown on Page 1 of the Grant Agreement 
that are required to be obtained and supplied by the Public Entity must either be in the form of (i) cash 
monies, (ii) legally binding commitments for money, or (iii) equivalent funds or contributions, including 
equity, which have been or will be used to pay for the Project.  The Public Entity shall supply to MnDOT 
whatever documentation MnDOT may request to substantiate the availability and source of any matching 
funds. 
 

Section 5.14  Sources and Uses of Funds.  The Public Entity represents to MnDOT and the 
Commissioner that the Sources and Uses of Funds Schedule attached as Exhibit A accurately shows the 
total cost of the Project and all of the funds that are available for the completion of the Project.  The Public 
Entity will supply any other information and documentation that MnDOT or the Commissioner may request 
to support or explain any of the information contained in the Sources and Uses of Funds Schedule.  If any 
of the funds shown in the Sources and Uses of Funds Schedule have conditions precedent to the release of 
such funds, the Public Entity must provide to MnDOT a detailed description of such conditions and what 
is being done to satisfy such conditions. 
 
 Section 5.15  Project Completion Schedule.  The Public Entity represents to MnDOT and the 
Commissioner that the Project Completion Schedule attached as Exhibit B correctly and accurately sets 
forth the projected schedule for the completion of the Project. 
 
 Section 5.16   Third-Party Beneficiary.  The Governmental Program will benefit the State of 
Minnesota and the provisions and requirements contained herein are for the benefit of both the State Entity 
and the State of Minnesota.  Therefore, the State of Minnesota, by and through its Commissioner of MMB, 
is and shall be a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement.   
 



 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 25 

Section 5.17  Public Entity Tasks.  Any tasks that the Agreement imposes upon the Public Entity 
may be performed by such other entity as the Public Entity may select or designate, provided that the failure 
of such other entity to perform said tasks shall be deemed to be a failure to perform by the Public Entity. 

 
 Section 5.18  Data Practices. The Public Entity agrees with respect to any data that it possesses 
regarding the G.O. Grant or the Project to comply with all of the provisions and restrictions contained in 
the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act contained in Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13, as such may 
subsequently be amended or replaced from time to time.  
 
 Section 5.19  Non-Discrimination. The Public Entity agrees to not engage in discriminatory 
employment practices regarding the Project and it shall fully comply with all of the provisions contained in 
Minnesota Statutes Chapters 363A and 181, as such may subsequently be amended or replaced from time 
to time.  
 
 Section 5.20 Worker’s Compensation. The Public Entity agrees to comply with all of the provisions 
relating to worker’s compensation contained in Minn. Stat. Secs. 176.181 subd. 2 and 176.182, as they may 
be amended or replaced from time to time with respect to the Project. 
 
 Section 5.21  Antitrust Claims. The Public Entity hereby assigns to MnDOT and the Commissioner 
of MMB all claims it may have for over charges as to goods or services provided with respect to the Project 
that arise under the antitrust laws of the State of Minnesota or of the United States of America.  
 
 Section 5.22  Prevailing Wages. The Public Entity agrees to comply with all of the applicable 
provisions contained in Minnesota Statutes Chapter 177, and specifically those provisions contained in 
Minn. Stat.§. 177.41 through 177.435 as they may be amended or replaced from time to time with respect 
to the Project.  By agreeing to this provision, the Public Entity is not acknowledging or agreeing that the 
cited provisions apply to the Project.  
 

Section 5.23  Entire Agreement. The Agreement and all of the exhibits attached thereto embody the 
entire agreement between the Public Entity and MnDOT, and there are no other agreements, either oral or 
written, between the Public Entity and MnDOT on the subject matter hereof.  
 
 Section 5.24  E-Verification. The Public Entity agrees and acknowledges that it is aware of 
Minn.Stat. § 16C.075 regarding e-verification of employment of all newly hired employees to confirm that 
such employees are legally entitled to work in the United States, and that it will, if and when applicable, 
fully comply with such order. 
 
 Section 5.25  Telecommunications Certification.  If federal funds are included in Exhibit A, by 
signing this agreement, Contractor certifies that, consistent with Section 889 of the John S. McCain 
National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2019, Pub. L. 115-232 (Aug. 13, 2018), and 2 CFR 
200.216, Contractor will not use funding covered by this agreement to procure or obtain, or to extend, 
renew, or enter into any contract to procure or obtain, any equipment, system, or service that uses “covered 
telecommunications equipment or services” (as that term is defined in Section 889 of the Act) as a 
substantial or essential component of any system or as critical technology as part of any system.  Contractor 
will include this certification as a flow down clause in any contract related to this agreement. 
 
 Section 5.26  Title VI/Non-discrimination Assurances. Public Entity agrees to comply with all 
applicable US DOT Standard Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances contained in DOT Order No. 
1050.2A, and in particular Appendices A and E, which can be found at: https://edocs-
public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=11149035. If federal funds are 

https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=11149035
https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=11149035


 MnDOT Agreement No. 1059837  
 SAP No. 184-101-003 

 

Revised October 2024 26 

included in Exhibit A, Public Entity will ensure the appendices and solicitation language within the 
assurances are inserted into contracts as required.  MnDOT may conduct a review of the Public Entity’s 
compliance with this provision. The Public Entity must cooperate with MnDOT throughout the review 
process by supplying all requested information and documentation to MnDOT, making Public Entity staff 
and officials available for meetings as requested, and correcting any areas of non-compliance as determined 
by MnDOT. 
 
 Section 5.27  Electronic Records and Signatures.  The parties agree to contract by electronic 
means. This includes using electronic signatures and converting original documents to electronic records. 
 
 Section 5.28  Certification.  By signing this Agreement, the Grantee certifies that it is not suspended 
or debarred from receiving federal or state awards. 



CITY OF ST. PAUL PARK 
 

WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1744 
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING BID 
2025 3RD STREET RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 

SAP 184-101-003 
 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an advertisement for bids for the 2025 3rd Street Reconstruction Project 
with reference to the improvements of 3rd Street from Broadway Avenue to 14th Avenue all in St. 
Paul Park, Washington County, Minnesota, bids were received, opened, read aloud, and 
tabulated according to law, and the following bids were received complying with the 
advertisement: 
 

  Contractor Base Bid* 
Alternate 1 

(14th Ave Imps) 
Alternate 2 

(Bituminous Trl) 
Alternate 3 

(Concrete Walk) 
1 Geislinger and Sons, Inc. $6,902,810.26 $160,186.42 $101,080.00 $249,090.00 

2 Meyer Contracting, Inc. $7,493,007.56 $128,618.78 $64,980.00 $212,990.00 

3 S.M. Hentges & Sons, Inc. $7,616,423.30 $144,112.00 $158,840.00 $415,150.00 

4 Dresel Contracting, Inc. $7,872,872.50 $238,576.30 $137,902.00 $135,736.00 

5 R.L. Larson Excavating, Inc. $7,889,202.95 $154,692.80 $126,350.00 $274,360.00 

* The Base Bid total includes all Base Bid items plus the two Provisional items totaling $32,500. 
 
WHEREAS, it appears that the bid of Geislinger and Sons, Inc., for the construction of said 
improvements for the Base Bid and Alternate 3 in the amount of $7,151,900.26 is in accordance 
with the plans and specifications and advertisement for bids, is the lowest responsive, 
responsible bid, and hereby is accepted. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of St. Paul Park, Minnesota: 
 

1. The Mayor and City Administrator are hereby authorized and directed to enter into a 
contract with Geislinger and Sons, Inc., of Watkins, Minnesota, in the name of the City of 
St. Paul Park for the 2025 3rd Street Reconstruction Project. 
 

2. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to return forthwith to all bidders the 
deposits made with their bids, except that the deposit of the successful bidder and the 
next two lowest bidders shall be retained until a contract has been executed. 

 
Adopted this 19th day of May, 2025 by the City Council of St. Paul Park, Minnesota. 
 
 
 
 
   
   Keith Franke, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
   
 Amy Truhlar, City Clerk 
 


	05-19-25 Council Agenda
	Item 1; Proposed 05-05-2025 Minutes
	Item 4a; 05-19-2025 AP Report
	Item 4b1; Executive Summary - Special Event Permit-American Legion, June 7
	Item 4b2; Executive Summary - Special Event Permit-Higher Ground Wrestling, June 7
	Item 4b3; Executive Summary - Special Event Permit-SPP Food Truck Food Fight, June 8
	Item 5a; 2025 Street Improvement Project
	Street Recon.2025-05-19 Memo KWalsh - 3rd Street Receive Bids Award Contract
	Memorandum

	Street Recon.024003-000 CST LTR RECMMDTN-051225
	Street Recon.Bid Tab Summary-051225-Signed

	Item 5a1; Resolution No. 1743-Grant Agreement Terms and Conditions
	Item 5a2; Grant Agreement
	LOCAL ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (LRIP)
	GRANT AGREEMENT
	Article I
	Definitions
	“Agreement” - means the Local Road Improvement Program Grant Agreement between the Public Entity and the Minnesota Department of Transportation to which this Exhibit is attached.
	Article II
	Article III

	Item 5a3; Resolution No. 1744-Award Contract - 3rd Street Recon



